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I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

I
I

I

I. This dministrative COMPLAINT Al\D NOTICE OF OPPORTU1\ITY FOR HEARING
!

("Co plaint") is issued by the Complainant, which is the Director of the Air Protection
I

I
Divis on, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III ("EPA:' or "the Agency"), to

\

Kopp rs Incorporated, which owns and operates a facility located at 100 Koppers Road in
I

FOllarbee, West Virginia, 26037 ("'Koppers Follansbee" or "Respordent").

2. This I omplaint is issued pursuant to Section 1l3(d) of the Clean Air Act ("CAA" or the "Act"),

as am nded, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and the Consolidated Rules ofPrlctice Governing the
I

Admi istrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, and the Revocation/Tfrmination or Suspension of

I
Permi s ("Consolidated Rules") found at 40 CF.R Part 22. The Complaint alleges violations by

\
Respo dent of Section 112 of the Act, certain provisions of the West Virginia State

:

\



Imp ementation Plan ("WV SIP"), and Koppers Follansbee's federally-enforceable Title V
I

pe it. Authority to issue this Complaint has been delegated to the Director of the Air

I
Prot ction Division, EPA Region Ill. I

I
I

I

II. APPLICABLE STATUTES AND REGULAnONS

I
!

3. Sect n 110 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7410, requires that each State adopt and submit to EPA for

I
appr val a plan providing for implementation, maintenance, and enforcement of each National

i
Amb ent Air Quality Standard ("NAAQS") in the State, and that su1ch plan be adopted as law by

I
the S ate following reasonable notice and public hearings. See CAl § 110(a). If EPA finds the

State Plan complete, EPA shall approve the State Implementation Plan ("SIP"). See CAA §

I
110(r West Virginia's EPA-approved SIP is set forth at 40 c.F.R

i
Part 52, Subpart XX.

4. Sccti"n 502 of the CAA requires that major sources obtain a Title V operating permit. 42 U.S.C.

§ 761,a. West Virginia has an approved Title V operating permit program (See 66 Fed. Reg.

5032'1, Oct. 3, 2001). West Virginia's Title V permitting program is found at WV 45 CSR 30.
\

i
5. Secti n 112 of the Act, 42 U.S.c. § 7412, establishes a list of hazardous air pollutants ("HAPs")

I
and d rects EPA to define the categories of sources that are required Ito control emissions of

HAP Section 112(d) of the Act, 42 V.S.c. § 7412(d), directs EPAlto establish national

I
emiss ons standards for hazardous air pollutants ("NESHAPs") for sources in each category.

6. Pursu~t to Section 112, EPA promulgated the "National Emissions \Standards for Benzene

EmissIons from Coke by-Product Recovery Plants" found at 40 C.F.R. Part 61, Subpart L. See

54 Fe . Reg. 38073 (Sep. 14, 1989).
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7. Pur uant to Section 112 of the Act, in 1984 EPA promulgated the National Emission Standard
!

for: quipment Leaks (Fugitive Emission Sources) of Benzene, found at 40 C.F.R. Part 61,
I

Sub art J. These regulations apply to certain sources intended to Jperate in benzene service,
I

suc as pumps, compressors, connectors, etc., but do not apply to ~ourccs located in coke by-
I

pro ct recovery plants. See 40 C.F.R. § 61.11O(a), (b). These pr~visions generally require,

!
amo g other things, that the source comply with thc emission standards in 40 C.F .R. Part 61,

Sub art V, the National Emission Standards for Equipment Leaks. I

\
8. Purs ant to Section 112 of the Act, in 1994 EPA promulgated 1) th~ National Emission

I
Stan ards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic',Organic Chemical

i

I
Man facturing Industry (the "SOCMI"), 2) the National Emission Standards for Organic

I

Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for
I
I

Proc -ss Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operations, and Wastewater, and 3) the National
I,

I
Emis ion Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants for Equipment Leaks, found at 40

I
I

C.F. . Part 63, subparts F, G, and H, respectively. These three SUbparts are collectively referred'" '"I' ""NFSHAP HON:" Ii

9. Pursuant to Section 112 of the Act, in 1999 EPA promulgated the National Emission Standards

for HJzardous Air Pollutants for Pesticide Active Ingredient Produc;ion (the "NESHAP PAl"),

I
found at 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart MMM. With certain exceptions,at § 63.1360(d), affected

I,
,

sourcs subject to MMM include the "facility-wide collection of pes!icide active ingredient

\

manu cturing process units (PAl process units) that process, use, or produce HAP," and are

I
!
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loca ed at a plant site that is a "major source" under Section 112(a) of the Act. 40 C.F.R. §
I,

63.11 60(a). Two exemptions from the NESHAP PAl are for PAl process units that are subject to

I
SublJlart F (the National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the

syntletic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry), and coal tarl:distillation. 40 C.F.R. §

63.1160(d)(2), (4).

10. purs1ant to Section 112(f)(4) of the Act, 42 U.S.c. § 7412(f)(4), nJ hazardous air pollutant may

be elitted from any stationary source in violation of the standard e'~tablished under Section

I 12( ) of the Act that applies to that source. \

I

II. Secti n 113 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413, authorizes EPA to issue an administrative penalty
,

orde under Section 113(d) upon a finding that any person has vio[~ted the requirements of a SIP
\

(§ 11 (a)(1)), and/or violated any provision of a rule promulgated ~nder Section 112 of the Act,

i
or vi lated the term of any permit issued under Title V of the Act (§ 113(a)(3)).

I
I

12. Unde the authority of Section 114 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7414, representatives of EPA Region

III 'Of'"'"d "" ""-,;" ,",,",riO" of"" Kopp= F"II~,b" F~'+ "" M=h 10, 2009. A
reprerntative of the West Virginia Department of Environmental prtection (WVDEP) was also

present during the inspection. l

I
1

!
13. At th time of inspection, the Koppers Follansbee Facility was owned by Koppers, Incorporated,

I
I

which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Koppers Holdings Incorpora\ed.

I
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14. The Koppers Follansbee Facility manufactures various grades of coal tar pitch, chemical oils and

I

reti ed tars from crude coke oven tar. Respondent also produces naphthalene from refined
i '

che ical oil and blends different coal tar distillates to produce creosote.

\

15. Res ondent is a "'person" within the meaning of Sections l13(a) arid 502 of the Act, 42 U.S.C.

i
§§ 7 13(a) and 7661a, and as defined in Section 302(e) of the Act, ,42 U.S.C. § 7602(e).

!
16. The oppers Follansbee Facility is classified as a major stationary kource, as defined in Section

I,
302(,) of the CAA, because it has the potential to emit more than 100 tons per year of any air

I •
poilu ant, including the air pollutants NOx, S02, CO, VOCs and/or, HAPs. '

I
I

\

Kop

The

e 23, 1992 Koppers entered into Consent Order CO-R27-92'116 with the WYDEP wherein

rs Follansbee agreed to install equipment to control benzene ~missions. As required by
I •

nsent Order, Koppers Follansbee installed a debenzolizer unit on or about August 9, 1999.
I '
,

benzolizer unit removes benzene from the Refined Chemical ,oil ("RCa"). The reduced­
I
I

e RCa is further processed into naphthalene and the concentrated benzene is transferred
I

I
11 for storage and used as fuel for the boilers. The overhead or concentrated benzene

from he debenzolizer is subject to 40 C.F.R. Part 61, Subpart J.

18. On gust 17, 1994, Koppers Follansbee submitted an Initial Notification for the NESHAP
I '

BON pp1icability. Koppers Follansbee produces naphthalene from benzene-free Refinedl I ,

Chemical Oil which is recovered at the bottom of the debenzolizer. ~he naphthalene distillation

I
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I

I,

proc ss unit (NDU) is subject to Part 63, Subparts F, G and H (NESHAP HON).

I

,

19. ~n:L~::I:: :::::::~::: r:::i~;~:::~~~::i::::n~~ i:e:;r.~.:. :Oa:~~o;:::::g~eed
(Na:Lnal Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air pOllutantl for Equipment Leaks) to

eqUi~ment subject to 40 C.F.R. Part 61, Subpart J (National Emissi~n Standards for Equipment

Leakk of Benzene), notwithstanding the exemption for coke by-proLct recovery plants at 40

\

C.F.. § 61.11O(b), as outlined in the Appendix attached to the Con1sent Order.
I

I
20. On itr Notification of Compliance Status (NOC), dated November I, 1999, Koppers Follansbee

ident fied the equipment in benzene service associated with the debinzolizer unit that would be

mon1red using 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart H. The following eqUiJment was identified in

"""+, ~~i,,, '
(I) Debenzolizer column

(2)Tt 11
(3) B iler #2 feedlreturn lines

(4) B iler #3 feed/return lines

(5) CI se vent system to the reboilerlflare.

21. On Se tember 4,2007, the Koppers Follansbee Facility submitted t~ WVDEP a permit

I
applic tion (RI3-2274E) to become a synthetic minor source ofVOCs and HAPs in order to

I,

avoid he requirements of 40 C.F.R., Part 63, Subpart FFFF, the Mis~ellaneous Organic National
I
I

6 I
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Ma 9,2008.

I

\,
,

i
Emi sion Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (the ·'MON"). The MaN was ~ffective on

i '

I
I

! I
22. Res ondent proposed the following changes to its operation in the synthetic minor source permit

application number RI3-2274E: \ \

I. To remove #31 Tube Heater as an air pollution control dLice and repJce it with either
the existing flare or a new thermal oxidizer. Thc #31 tube heater will remain as only a
process heater. I \
2. To use new feedstock, namely Pctro Tar, at the #I, #2 and #4 distillation columns for
the production of petroleum pitch. This included the con~truction of a n',ew tank 808 to
store petroleum pitch, while cxisting tanks would be used 'to store the f'IW material and

, ,

distillate fraction. • I

3. Implementation of a plant-wide leak detection and repair (LDAR) program for use of
the USEPA Correlation Method I. 'I I
4. Controlling the Pavement Sealer Base (PSB) storage tanks and Modified PSB (MPSB)
and Refined Tar (RT) blending tanks by at least 98% (Tanks 13, 14,251.;252.253,254,
406 and 407). I I
5. Controlling the PSB, MPSB and RT product loading by at least 98%. ,
6. Controlling the creosote product tanks by at least 98% (tanks 221, 222, 223 and 224).
7. Controlling the creosote product loading by at least 98%. : I
8. Controlling the distillate tanks (middle and heavy fractions from the tar refining
columns, Tanks 17 and 382) by at least 98%. I

I

I
23. On ay 8, 2008, WVDEP issued permit number RI3-2274E to the Koppers Follansbee Facility

I !
to co struct, modify, relocate, and/or operate in accordance with the, permit applic~tion number

! i

R13- 274E. I I

l ! \
24. On M

1

y 20, 2004 the Koppers FolTansbee Facility submitted a Notic,e ofComplianfe Status

I I
(NOC for the NESHAP PAl. This NOC described six (6) creosote blend tanks (i.e. tanks 221,

I I
222, 2 3, 224, 126 and 127). The NOC also includcd a summary ofithe compositir of the

materi I contained in these tanks and furthcr identified the equipme~t (pumps, compressor,

\ \

I AttacJment 0 to this application further explains that the monitoring results frorri the LDAR program will be used
to calculiate VOC emissions, using the "EPA Correlation Approach" contained in EPA's "Protocol for Equipment
Leaks Emission Estimates", EPA-453?R-95-017, November 1995. ! I

7
I ,
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(3) Boiler #2 feed/return lines

Count I

III. VIOLATIONS

(2) Tank 11

pressure relief devices, agitators, sampling collection system open rnded valve ori line, valves

and lannectors and instrumentation system) subject to Leak Detection and Repai~ (LDAR)

proJsions ofthe NESHAP PAl i
I
!

!

!,

\

i
25. On i November 1999 NOC, Koppers Follansbee identified the eq~ipment in ben~~ne service

asso iated with the debenzolizer unit that would be monitored uSin~ 40 C.F.R. pa~ 63, Subpart

H. Tho followio, "!,ipm,,, w~ id~tifi<d~ io "'=~ ~"i~, I :
(I) Debenzolizer column I I

I

:

(4) Boiler # 3 feed/return lines

(5) Closed vent system to the reboiler/f1a~e.

! I
26. Acc01ding to Koppers Follansbee's Title V permit, the blend tanks issociated withithe Creosote

Processing Unit are Group 2 Process Vents subject to the PAl. These blend tanks are idcntitied
, I

: I

as Ta s 221, 222, 223, and 224. See Koppers Follansbee's Title V ,permit, #R30-009-00001-

2006, at p. 110. I

i
I,

27. 40 C..R. § 63.162(c) of subpart H as well as 40 C.F.R. § 63.1363(a)(7) of Subpart MMM
I I

requires that each piece of equipment in a process unit subject to su~rart H or § 63'11 363(a)(7l,

respec ively, be identified so that it can be "distinguished readily" from equipment to which sue
,

I
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138 omponents associated with tanks 221 through 224 .

sub rt does not apply.

28. Duri g the 2009 inspection, the EPA inspectors found that the foll~wing components were not
,

I

idej'ified or not properly identified in the Koppers Follansbee LD~R program:
\

Boil·r #2- Koppers failed to properly identitY valve number 55. :

Ta s 221 to 224: Koppers failed to identify 138 components asso~iated with tanks 221 through
. I

I I

224. I I
29. Resp ndent's failure to properly identify these components as part ~f its LDAR Piogram was a

, ,

viola ion of 40 C.F.R. § 63.162(c) for valve number 55 and 40 C.F.R. § 63 .1 363(a)(7) for the

I

I

Count II

I

30. Arou d 2004 or 2005, Koppers Follansbee agreed, as part of the Consent Order with the

WV EP described in Paragraph 19 above, to conduct LDAR on its !debenzolizer ulnit in

accor ance with 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart H, the National EmissiJn Standards fJ Organic
I •

I I

Hazan\dOUS Air Pollutants for Equipment Leaks. This agreement has been incorpor~ted into
\ \

Koppers Follansbee's Title V permit, # R30-009-00001-2006, at page 54, as a fede'rally-

ti bl
. I I

en or ea e reqUirement. 1

I
!

31. 40 C. ' .R. § 63.168(b) of Subpart H requires that valves be monitored at certain intervals of time,

as des ribed in the regulations.

32. During the inspection, EPA determined that Koppers failed to monitor valves 168 and 169 at all

I
!

9



,

\

34.40 C F.R. § 63.167(a)(I) of Subpart H requires that an open-ended 'valve or line be equipped

I I
with cap, blind flange. plug or second valve, with exceptions set forth in § 63.16'7(b), (d), and

. I
(e), hich are not applicable here. :

i
35. During the 2009 inspection, the EPA inspectors found that valve number 91 Og was not equipped

! I

with second valve, cap, plug or blind flange. Valve 9lOg is locate'd on top of tank 7, which is

part fthe Napthalene Distillation Unit and therefore subject to paJ 63, subparts J" G. and H.

I
I

i,
until approximately October 20 IO. Valves 168 and 169 are part of\the overheads \from the

debe zolizer and as such are subject to Part 61, Subpart J and therefore, pursuant to the Consent

Ord r described in paragraph 19 and Koppers Follansbee's Title V Ipermit, sUbjecl to Part 63,
\

I.

I

I
33. Res ndent's failure to monitor valves 168 and 169 at all times pri6rto February 2011 was a

,

1

1

viol ion of 40 C.F.R. § 63.168 and Koppers Follansbee's Title V permit.
!

Count III

Resp ndent therefore violated 40 C.F.R. § 63.1 67(a)(1 ).

Count IV

10

36. In its synthetic minor source permit application, Koppers Follansbee agreed to control the

,ml+m from "rt,I, ,,'"" Md ",ipm,,' by 98% by mofing ,Ire ri~i'", ,", ~~'l
oxidiier or a flare. in order to limit total HAP emissions to below 242 tons per yea~. Koppers

Folladsbee requested these limits in permit application R 13-2274E i~ order to be a lynthetiC

minor source and avoid applicability of the MON. Synthetic minor lource permits lissued by
I I

WVDEP are federally-enforceable as part of the EPA-approved Title V permit program.
I

I
I

I

I



and

ppm.

37. At t is time, a compressor collects and feeds emissions from at least the following process units

'" <hf <h,~"l ",idi~" I

Tar distillation columns I, 2 and 4 I
I

o rhead from the debenzolizer- Subject to Part 61, Subpart.J I

o rheads from Naphthalene distillation columns and tanks-subject to part 63, Subpart F, G
I.

I

I

E issions trom the creosote blend tanks 22\ through 224-subjecyo Part 63 SUbrart MMM.

38. Duri g the 2009 inspection, the EPA inspectors observed that the compressor collecting

emis ions trom various process equipment, including the equiPmenl identified in JaragraPh 36

abov", and fecding the thermal oxidizer was leaking process t1uid sLerelY. Readi1ngs of the leak
I I

usin EPA's leak detection equipment showed concentrations of total HAPs as high as 16,000
I

I

! I

39. This I:ompressor draws gas streams (process tluids) from various points in the Follansbee

FacirlYsubject to the NESHAP HON and with greater than 5% by Leight ofhazJdous air
\
,

pollu .ants and is therefore in organic hazardous air pollutant service' and subject to 40 C.F.R. §
I •

63.16 ,which requires .(With excePtio~s not.relevant here) that each,eompressor blequipped

with seal system that mcludes a barner tlUld system that prevents leakage of process tlUld to

L i I
the at osphere. Respondent's failure to equip the compressor with a seal system that prevents

leaka e of process t1uid from the compressor for the thermal oXidiz~r is a violationlof 40 C.F.R.
I

§ 63.164.

II



I
I

Count V I

I

I
I,

40. The eneral requirements for the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air :Pollutant

souro:e categories, found at 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart A, include o~eration and Jaintenance

requ rements in 40 C.F.R. § 63.6(e) that include the requir~ment toihave a Start-ul, Shutdown

and alfunction (SSM) plan. See 40 C.F.R. § 63.6(e)(3). The pu~ose ofthc SS~ plan is to
I I

ensu e that during times of SSM, the owner or operator of the affecred source minimizes

emissions to the greatest extent of safety and good air pollution CO~)trol practices. \

I

i

I
41. 40 C F.R. § 63.6(e), as referenced by 40 C.F.R. § 63. I 367(a)(3) and Section 21.1.3 of Koppers

Follansbee's Title V permit, requires following SSM Plan reqUirem~nts for certaij tanks subject

: I
to 40 C.F.R. Part 63, subpart MMM, including tank 221, a creosote tank. The ssm Plan

requi ements are set forth at Sections 21.4.1(2) and 21.5.4 OfKopp~rs' Title V peJrrit.

\
I

42. On 0 about May 9, 2008, Koppers Follansbee routed emissions froT certain creos1ote tanks,

inclu1ing tank 221, to the Thermal Oxidizer. During EPA's 2009 iTpection, the ihermal

OXidi~erwas not operating continuously. When EPA inspectors monitored the top of Tank 221,

the iJpectors found a hole in the top of the tank which was leaking.
I

, EPA's leak dltection

equip ent detected total HAP emissions from the hole on tank 221 ~f up to 5000 plpm.

43. Resp dent failed to include tank 221 in its SSM plan, and therefore] did not fOllol the

requir ments of its SSM plan when the Thermal Oxidizer was not operating. Respondent's
)

I
12 \
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II

, I

fail e to control emissions from Tank 221 while the Thermal Oxidizer was not iri operation was
!

a VI lation of Koppers' SSM Plan and Section 21.1.3 of Koppers' Title V permit.
,

I
I

!

Count VI I I

44.40 C.F.R. § 63.l63(b)(l) and (2) defines a leak detection machinery reading of lObo ppm or'''+.,,''''''' fm "m", ',11gb, IIq'," ~Nlre 40 C.P.R. § 631'180 '''l,I,,, ,~ '" ,fM"h"

21 fOr. the calibration ofleak detection ma~hinery. Method 21 '. seclion 7.1.2 re~~ts "fO~ each

orgamc specIes to use a known concentratIOn equal to the applIcable leak defimtI~n,,, whIch III

this ase is 1000 ppm. I

II

45. Kop ers Follansbee did not use a 1000 ppm calibration gas to calibrte its monitoling instrument

Whe~monitOring pumps in light liquid service during the following months: May and April
I I

2006 and June, July, August, September and November 2007. Jnst~ad, Koppers Rlollansbee used
, ,

a califration gas of zero (0) and 10,000 ppm. Respondent thereforeviolated 40 C.F.R. § 63.180
! I

by fa' ling to follow the requirements of Method 21. i I

"

I

i
!

46. On A gust 13, 2010, EPA issued a Finding of Violation ("FOV") to Koppers for the violations
i I

alleg d above at the Follansbee facility. A copy of the FOV was provided to the WVDEP. EPA
I !

met ith representatives of Koppers on February 17,2011, to discuJs the violationk alleged in
! I

'I I
the F V.

I
,

I
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IV. PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY

i

I
47.Sect on 113(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d). the Federal CivilPenalties Inflation

i I

Adj stment Act of 1990, as amended by the Debt Collection Impro\vement Act of11996, and the

subs quent Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 :.F.R. Parts 191and 27,

auth rize a penalty of not more than $32,500 for each violation of the CAA that occurred after

Mar h 15,2004 through January 12, 2009, and a penalty of not mo~e than $37,50J for each
I

viol ion which uccurred after January 12, 2009. EPA proposes to' assess a civil Jenalty of

$30 I 000 against Respondent as follows;

Economic benefit - $0

Gravity Component

Potential for Harm

Amount ofPoJlutant - $0

Toxicity of Pollutant - $15,000 (napthalene)

Sensitivity of Environment - $ 0

Length of Time of Violation

Compressor violation- 24 months (3/10/09 - 3/10/11 = $25,000
,

SSMP violation - 3110/09 -7/14110 = $20.000

iImportance to Regulatory Scheme ,
,

Work practice std violation (SSMPj = $ I 0,000

LDAR Violations (Appendix VI to penalty policy)
,

139 unmarked compunents creosote tanks = $13,900 ($100 x 139)

Equipment Standard )

Failure to cap open-ended line = $15,000
i

Failure to operate compressor per 63. I64 = $15,000

Monitoring

14



15

Failure to calibrate properly for 7 ronths, at $7,5
I

OO/month, but

reduced by .5 (This represents a failure to monitor correctly 50% of time) =

$26,500 I I

Failure to monitor valves 168, 169 ~nnually oc $\01,000

! 1

Importance to Regulatory scheme subtotal = $90,15? 1

Size of violator = $75,000 'I 1

Koppers Holding net worth of $220,000,000 ,was reduced to 50% of

gravity component, or $75,000. i 1

Gravity total = $225,150

Adjustment factors - None applied at this time

Inflation adjustments

Mar 16,2004 - Jan 12,2009 = 1.2895 x $225,150 x 3/5 = $174,199
, ,

, I

Jan 12,2009 and after = 1.4163 x $225,150 x2/5 = $127,552
, I

Inflation adjusted gravity ~ $174,111 + $127,552 = $301,7511

1 Total Proposed Penalty = $301,751, rounded down to $301,000 1

48. The ploposed civil penalty has been determined in accordance with ISection 113 J1the CAA, 42
I I i

U.S. . § 7413; 40 C.F.R. Part 19; U.S. EPA's Clean Air Act Station~ry Source Ci\r Penalty

Polic , dated October 21, 1991 (CAA Penalty Policy), and Appendix VI thereto; and

Modi Ications to EPA Penalty Policies to Implement the Civil Mon~tary Penalty IJflation Rule

(purJant to the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, Effectiv~ October 1, 2J04), dated

SepterI ber 21,2004 (Inflation Policy). Copies of the CAA Penalty Policy and APJendix VI

theret , and the Inflation Policy are enclosed with this Complaint. )he proposed pLalty is not a

dema Id as that term is defined in the Equal Access to Justice Act, 2~ U.S.C. § 241t
i 1

, 1

I

49. In det rmining the amount of any penalty to be assessed, Section I q(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.c. §
\

I

!



74J:B(e), requires EPA to take into consideration the size ofthe business, the ecoLmic impact ofI . I

the benalty on the business, the violator's full compliance history ~nd good faith Jfforts to

comblY, the duration of the violation as established by any credible evidence, pa)ment by the
i I

viol tor of penalties previously assessed for the same violation, thi economic betfit of

non ompliance, and the seriousness of the violation. To develop the proposed penalty herein,

Co rlainant has taken into account the particular facts and circumftances ofthis lase with

specific reference to Appendix VI as well as Ihe CAA Penalty Policy, both of Whi1ch were
\

inde ed for inflation in keeping with 40 C.F.R. Part 19.

,

50. EPA will consider, among other factors, Respondent's ability to pay 10 adjust the proposed civil

pena ty assessed in this Complaint. The proposed penalty reflects ~i presumption1f

R"1m'on'" ,bd;'y '" P"Y <h, 1"'001" 00"" '"0';0"' ;0 b",;~, r=' "0 <h, ';r ""b,i,
businFsses and the economic impact of the proposed penalty on their businesses. The burden of

raisinl, and demonstrating an inability to pay rests with Respondent:, In addition, tt the extent

that t cts or circumstances unknown to Complainant at the time of the issuance of the Complaint

beco e known after issuance ofthe Complaint. such facts and circ~'mstances may lalso be

consicilered as a basis for adjusting the proposed civil penalty assessed in the comJlaint.

51. EPA' applicable penalty policy represents an analysis of the statutory penalty factors

enumerated above, as well as guidance on their application to partic~lar cases. Iftt penalty

propJed herein is contested through the hearing process described ~elow, ComplaInant is

prep~d to support the statutory basis for the elements of the penaJt~ policy apPliJ in this case
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as w, II as the amount and nature of the penalty proposed.

52. No ~ rther adjustment of the penalty appears warranted under the applicable penalty policies at

I I

this tIme. If appropriate, further penalty adjustments may be made during settlement
I I I

negotiations. EPA reserves the right to seek higher penalties if neJ evidence supJorts such

asseslment. I

I

V. NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST A HEARING

I I

53. ReSPlndent has the right to request a hearing to contest any matter 0"f law or mate)ial fact set
! I

forth 'n the Complaint or the appropriateness of the proposed penalty. To request ahearing,
i I

Resp ndent must file a written Answer to this Complaint with the Regional Hearirig Clerk, U.S.
, I

EPA egion III (3RCOO), 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, PA 1910~-2029 within rirty (30) days

of re ipt of this Complaint. The Answer should clearly and directly admit, deny or explain each
I I

of th material factual allegations contained in this Complaint of which RespondeJt has any

koowl'dg'. If R"""od'"' ." 0" ","wI",,, of " p"""",,, ["""oJ:,1I'g"""o. ili+o'w"

shouUI so state. That statement will be deemed a denial of the allegation. The Answer should
I ; I

contaJn: (I) the circumstances or arguments which are alleged to constitute the grdunds of any

defeJe; (2) the facts which Respondent disputes; (3) the basis for opposing any pr~posed relief;
, I

I I

and ( ) whether a hearing is requested. Respondent's failure to admit, deny or explain any
i I

I

mater al factual allegation contained in the Complaint constitutes an admission of the allegation.

I I
A cop~ of the Answer and all other documents filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk related to

I I

this C mplaint must be sent to Doug Snyder (3RC10), Assistant Regional Counsel, U.S. EPA

17



Regi n III, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, PA, 19103-2029.

ing upon the issues raised by the complaint and answer may be held if requested by

\ I
Res ndent in its answer. Failure to Answer may result in the filing of a Motion for Default

,

Orde, imposing the penalties proposed herein without further proceedings.

I

I
i
I

55. Any hearing requested will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Administrative

p,Jd,re Ac<, 5 U,S,C, § 554, "d "" Coo"lid.'" ",k, " 40 C'i'" P,rt 22 tropy of""~
rules is enclosed. Hearings will be held in a location to be determined at a later date pursuant to

40 C. .R. § 22.21 (d).

VI. SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

56. EPA ncourages settlement of proceedings at any time after issuanci~ of a complai1nt if such

settle ent is consistent with the provisions and objectives of the CAA. WhetherJnot a hearing
I I
I ,

is req ested, Respondent may confer with Complainant regarding the allegations of the

Com laint and the amount of the proposed civil penalty. i I

i I

i I
57. In the event settlement is reached, its terms shall be expressed in a written ConsentiAgrecment

I I
prep ed by Complainant, signed by the parties, and incorporated into a Final Order signed by

the Rgional Administrator or his designee. Settlement conferences',shall not affeJ the

requir ment to file a timely Answer to the Complaint.
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58. The ttorney assigned to this case is Doug Snyder, Assistant Regional Counsel. If you have any
" I

ques ions or desire to arrange an informal settlement conference. please contact Mr. Snyder at

(215 814-2692 before the expiration of the thirty (30) day period ~ollowing your leceiPt of this
I, I

Com laint. If you are represented by legal counsel, you must have,your counseliontact Mr.

Snyder on your behalf. Please be advised that the Consolidated Rules at 40 C.F.R!. § 22.8

prohlbit any unilateral discussion of the merits of a case with the Administrator, Jembers of the

EnviLnmental Appeals Board. Presiding Officer, Regional Admin:strator or the dCgiOnal,
i

Judi ial Officer after the issuance of a Complaint. \

VII. QUICK RESOLUTION

59. In ac ordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(a) of the Consolidated Rules, Respondent may resolve this

proc ding at any time by paying the specific penalty proposed in this Complaint Lin

Com lainant's prchearing exchange. If Respondent pays the specific penalty proJsed in this
! I

Com laint within 30 days of receiving this Complaint. then, pursum:t to 40 C.F.R. \§ 22.18(a)(I)

ofth Consolidated Rules, no Answer need be filed. I

I
60. If Re pondent wishes to resolve this proceeding by paying the penalty proposed in 'this

. I
Com laint instead of filing an Answer but needs additional time to pay the penalty; pursuant to

,

40 c.I.R. § 22.18(a)(2) of the Consolidated Rules, Respondent may ,file a written slatement with

the Rfional Hearing Clerk within 30 days after receiving this Com~laint stating tJat
• I

Respo dent agrees to pay the proposed penalty in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(a)(I).

Such ritten statement need not contain any response to, or admission of, the allegltions in the

I
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U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P. O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000.

Co plaint. Such statement shall be filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCO,o), U.S. EPA,

Reg' n m, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029 and a copy Ishall be

prov ded to Doug Snyder (3RClO), Assistant Regional Counsel, U:S. EPA, Regilm, 1650

ArJ Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029. Within 60 d~yS ofreceivinJ the

comblaint, Respondent shall pay the full amount of the proposed p~nalty. Failurb to make such

paynLnt within 60 days of receipt of the Complaint may subject the Respondent th default

""~1m, '" 40 C.F.R § 2217 """" Coo,,"da'ed Rok,. , '

61. Upon receipt of payment in full, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22',18(a)(3) of thelConsolidated

RUlJ, the Regional Judicial Officer or Regional Administrator shalll issue a final drder. Payment

by RLpondent shall constitute a waiver of Respondent's right to coi~test the allegltions and to

I :
appe]l the final order. ,

62. Pay ent of the penalty shall be made by cashier's check, certified c~eck, electronic wire transfer.

Auto atcd Clearing House ("ACH"), or an on line, internet paymenit as specified Jelow. All
. I

paym nts also shall reference the above case caption and docket number.

63. All c ecks shall be made payable to Treasurer, United States of America and shall be mailed to

the aJention of: I I

I
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sfo 1.1 in the search field. Open fonn and complete required fields.

U.S. Treasury REX/Cashlink ACH Receiver
ABA: 051036706
Account nwnber: 310006, Environmental Protection Agenc~

CTX FonnatTransaction Code 22 - checking !

(866) 234-5681

Overnight deliveries shall be sent to:

U.S. Bank
Government Lockbox 979077
Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL
St. Louis, MO 6310 I
(314) 418-1028

All electronic wire transfer payments shall be directed to:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA = 021030004
Account = 68010727
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New York NY 10045
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 Enviroiental
Protection Agency" !

. I

Payments through ACH (also known as REX or remittance express) shall be directed to:

I
I

! I

In addition, there is now an on line, internet payment option, available thro~gh the United
IStates Department of Treasury. This payment option can be accessed from www.pay.gov. Enter

I
II

21



Date

22

~
,

.,.,1

'"W ')
0 1-..." '"'-
:s: c 11

f:' \J

0


